
Mark Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

  01525 631920
   info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 
1HD.

Friday, 27 September 2019

To:  Members of the Cultural & Economic Committee (Councillors A Dodwell, 
S Hemmings, C Chambers, K Cursons, D Bowater, G Perham, M Freeman, 
R Goodchild and P Snelling)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Cultural & Economic Committee to 
be held on Monday, 7 October 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, 
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, 
Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD.. 

M Saccoccio 
Town Clerk

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of 
the Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the 
meeting. Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to 
the Town Clerk.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of 
it. 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted 
by the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

3.  QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect 
of any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED *

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE Monday, 7 October 2019

Order No.s 3(f) and 3(g).

4.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Pages 1 - 6)

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Cultural and 
Economic Services Committee meetings held on 3 June 2019.

5.  SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 7 - 16)

To receive the draft minutes of the following meeting and to consider any 
recommendations contained therein:

(a) Market Sub Committee 29 August 2019 (attached)

6.  GREENSAND RIDGE WALK AND CYCLE GATEWAY FEATURE 

To receive a presentation from Mr Balaam of The Greensand Trust on 
progress in installing the Gateway feature.

7.  COMMUNITY EVENTS (Pages 17 - 22)

a) To receive a progress report on community events for the current year 
and to consider the recommendation/s contained therein. (attached)

b) To receive a report providing a financial update on community event 
costs and to consider the recommendation/s contained therein (to 
follow)

8.  TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE (Pages 23 - 26)

To receive an update report (attached) regarding TACTIC activity during May 
2019 to August 2019 and consider the recommendation/s contained therein.

9.  COMMITTEE WORKPLAN AND OBJECTIVES (Pages 27 - 28)

To receive the Committee objectives and work plan for 2019 – 2020 
(attached).      

10.  BUDGET REPORT (Pages 29 - 38)

To receive a report and consider recommendations therein (attached).

11.  YOUTH PROMISE GRANT EVALUATION 

To receive a report and consider the recommendations therein (to follow).  

12.  SERVICE UPDATES 



CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE Monday, 7 October 2019

To receive verbal updates on:

• Best Bar None Update 
• Pigeon Management
• Electronic Signs
• Town Centre Architectural Lighting Scheme
• Summary of work activity
• Living History Trail 
• CBC S106 funded projects

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 3 JUNE 2019 AT 7.30 PM

Present:   Councillors A Dodwell (Chair)
S Hemmings (Vice-Chair)
C Chambers
K Cursons
D Bowater
G Perham
M Freeman
R Goodchild
P Snelling

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio, Town Clerk
V Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic 
Services
T Quinn, TACTIC Manager
B Bodsworth, Events Contractor
M Jahn, Committee Officer
S Jewell

Members of the public: 0
Members of the press 0

1/CE APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor S Hemmings be appointed 
Vice Chair of the Committee for the municipal year 2019-2020. There were 
no further nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Hemmings Vice Chair of the 
Cultural and Economic Services Committee for 2019-2020. 

2/CE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

 No apologies for absence had been received.

3/CE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  

Councillor Freeman declared an interest in Agenda item 7 Community Events 
Update Report, point 7 VE Day Commemorations 2020,  as a member of the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting Monday, 3 June 2019

Page 2

British Legion.

4/CE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from the public.

5/CE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

The Committee received the draft minutes of the previous committee 
meetings held on 11 March 2019.

Item ref 165/CE Allocation of S106 Funds Report – a question was raised 
asking if the S016 money should be used to resurface Bell Alley.  The Head 
of Cultural and Economic Services confirmed this area had been identified by 
the Town Council as one of four areas within the town where improvements 
were needed to enhance the surrounding area.  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Cultural and Economic Services 
Committee held on 11 March 2019 be approved as a correct record and 
were signed accordingly.

6/CE SUB COMMITTEE MINUTES

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 
meeting held on 23 May 2019 for consideration.

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 
meeting held on 23 May 2019.

7/CE COMMUNITY EVENTS UPDATE

The Committee received a progress report on community events including 
the Big Lunch, Linslade Canal Festival, Music in the Park, Living History and 
Christmas Festival Weekend preparations and VE Day Commemorations 
2020.  This would be the first year the Linslade Canal Festival would run until 
8.00 pm in The Paddocks area with live music and food stalls remaining 
open.  It was confirmed the road closures would cease at 5.00 pm but 
carparking would still be available until the event ended at Cedars Upper 
School and Linslade Middle School.

Thanks were given to the Events Team for the very successful Big Lunch 
event on Sunday 2 June with 40 vendors attending, live music, children’s 
workshops and walkabout entertainers.  Feedback so far had been positive 
and a survey on social media was underway and would be reviewed once 
completed.

It was noted that information had been received regarding the 75th 
anniversary commemorations for VE day in 2020 over the weekend of 8th – 
10th May.  The Town Council would endeavour to fulfil the requirements of 
these commemorations by undertaking activities over the weekend in 

Page 2



Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting Monday, 3 June 2019

Page 3

partnership with local organisations and discussions have been held with 
Churches Together and the British Legion. 

RESOLVED to –

1.1 note the report
1.2 approve the draw-down of £5000 (4508/101) from council 

reserves to support the VE Day celebrations in 2020

8/CE SOCIAL HERITAGE TRAIL

The Committee received an update report regarding the progress of the new 
trail, being named ‘Living History Trail.’ It was proposed to launch the trail 
during the Living History Day event on 5th October 2019.  The Committee 
was informed the format of the trail included an App for use on phones and 
tablets, a trail map leaflet and information on the Town Council website.  The 
trail would focus on the town’s social history with each trail location focussing 
on a person from the town’s history.  It was hoped the App and the trail could 
be designed to allow additional information to be added as it developed with 
the possibility of including other languages as an added option.

RESOLVED to note the report.

9/CE BUSINESS NETWORKING EVENT

The Committee received a progress report on the Business Networking 
Event.  The event had been held annually since 2013 providing the 
opportunity for local business people to network, seek advice and develop 
contacts to promote their own business.  

At the last event held on 24 April 2019 a total of 177 people attended on the 
night and from the evaluation the majority of attendees found the event useful 
to them and their business.  A member of the public recommended the event 
for an award at the Luton and Bedfordshire Small, Medium Enterprises 
Business Awards Event and the Council was one of three finalists in the 
Business Networking Group of the Year category.

RESOLVED to

1.1 note the report
1.2 carry forward the unspent budget of £105.80 into financial year 

2020/21 to contribute to the next year’s event and in recognition 
of ever increasing delivery costs.

10/CE TACTIC UPDATE

The Committee received and considered  a report to update members of 
work undertaken at TACTIC during  February 2019 to April 2019 including 
the Youth Work Programme, staffing, Youth Forum, Pop Art project, TANG 
group  and that a TACTIC Youth Volunteer won the High Sherfiff’s Young 

Page 3



Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting Monday, 3 June 2019

Page 4

People’s citizenship Award for her outstanding contribution to volunteering in 
Leighton Buzzard.   Events  would be run over the coming months with a 
Basketball course starting on the 19 June for 5 weeks at Pages Park  and 
various short projects being held over the summer holiday period.

It was noted that the Youth Forum project had seen the group design a Top 
Ten Tips mental health booklet for young people and were undertaking 
training called ‘Puzzled Minds’ which enabled them as young people to train 
to raise awareness on mental health with their peers.

RESOLVED to note the report.

11/CE MARKET POLICY UPDATES

The Committee received and considered a report to review and update 
Market Policies and Procedures.  At a recent Market Sub Committee meeting 
it had been agreed to rename the Market Cancellation Policy to Market 
Safety Policy.  After further consideration and discussion a suggestion had 
been made to create two separate policy documents entitled Adverse 
Weather Policy and Critical Incident Policy thus deleting the Market Safety 
Policy.

After discussion the Committee RESOLVED to -

1.1 endorse the creation of two separate policy documents entitled, 
Adverse Weather Policy and Critical Incident Policy, thus deleting 
the single document recently renamed Market Safety Policy.

1.2 RECOMMEND to Policy and Finance Committee to endorse the 
Critical Incident Policy with agreed minor alterations and await 
further development of the Adverse Weather Policy.

12/CE BUDGET REPORT

The Committee received a budget update report for the revenue and 
earmarked reserves.

RESOLVED to

1.1 note the report
1.2 allocate earmarked reserves budget 9028, (signage) to continue 

signage improvements for Ryland Mews and Bell Alley in keeping 
with previous work at Peacock Mews and Friday Street.

1.3 endorse spend on installing fire doors in TACTIC at £2,100 from 
earmarked reserves budget 9020.

1.4 endorse the use of earmarked reserves budget 9020, of £1,656, 
for updating of 3 x computers for young people’s use.

1.5 recommend release of £114 from earmarked reserves budget 
9049 to Homeless charity of the Youth Forum’s preference.

1.6 recommend moving earmarked reserves budget line 9027 and 

Page 4



Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting Monday, 3 June 2019

Page 5

remaining funds of £249, into the Economic Development 
earmarked reserves 9018.

13/CE TOWN CENTRE WI-FI

The Committee received an update report regarding the Town Centre Wi-Fi.  
Following further investigations into the provision of town centre Wi-Fi, 
quotes had been received from two suppliers and the primary element of the 
quote was the provision of Wi-Fi within the High Street.  Officers requested 
that the suppliers also provide additional information on how their systems 
could be enhanced to support town centre footfall intelligence gathering and 
the costs involved.  

RESOLVED to

1.1 RECOMMEND to Council to enter into a delivery contract with 
supplier ‘B’ for town centre WiFi provision and footfall insight 
provision for three years at a cost of up to £38,000.

1.2 RECOMMEND to Council that officers liaise with Central 
Bedfordshire Council to draw down s106 monies reflective of 
Council’s endorsed recommendation above.

14/CE SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDER 3(X)

It was noted that in order to continue the meeting past 10pm, Standing Order 
3(x) would need to be suspended. 

RESOLVED to suspend Standing Order 3(x) for a maximum of thirty 
minutes.

15/CE COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN

The Committee received the Committee Objectives and Work Plan for 2019-
2020.

RESOLVED to note the report.

16/CE SERVICE UPDATES

The Committee received verbal updates on Best Bar None, Pigeon 
Management, Electronic Signs and the Town Centre Architectural Lighting 
Scheme.

The Best Bar None scheme was now working towards completion with most 
assessments now finished and the People’s Vote opening, culminating in an 
awards ceremony on the 16th September 2019.  Vulnerability Awareness 
training had also taken place with staff from pubs in Leighton-Linslade, 
Dunstable, Sandy, Biggleswade and Houghton Regis and had been well 
received and attended.  

Page 5



Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting Monday, 3 June 2019

Page 6

RESOLVED to note the updates.

The meeting closed at 10.02 pm. 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 3 JUNE 2019. 

Chair                          DATE  

Page 6



Page 4

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 29 AUGUST 2019 AT 1030 HOURS

Present:  Councillors J M Freeman 
G Perham (Chair)
D Bowater
C Chambers
R Berry
M Freeman
P Snelling

          V Harvey (substituting R Goodchild)
          A Dodwell (substituting T Morris)
          F Kharawala (substituting K Cursons)

                      Also in attendance:      M Saccoccio, Town Clerk
V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic 
Services) 
A Harrison (Market Manager)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)
Dave Gibbins (Market Trader Representative) 
left meeting at 11:10 hours)

 

           Members of the Public: 0
           Members of the Press: 0

10/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor R Goodchild 
(substituted by Councillor V Harvey), Councillor T Morris (substituted by 
Councillor F Kharawala), Councillor K Cursons (substituted by Councillor A 
Dodwell) and Peter Elmore, Market Trader Representative.

11/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made. 

12/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from the public.

13/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 23 May 2019 for consideration. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Market Sub-Committee 29 AUGUST 2019  
                                                                                                                                                               

Page 5

on 23 May 2019 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly.

14/MK MARKET POLICY UPDATES

The Sub-Committee received and considered a report regarding the Adverse 
Weather Policy and Disclaimer.

Since the relaunch of the Market in September 2017, the market had been 
forced to close on six occasions, as it was deemed hazardous to erect and 
operate from market structures.  Some traders chose to trade at the market 
despite these conditions, which had prompted the Town Council to amend the 
Adverse Weather Policy and Disclaimer to offer clarity to all who have an 
interest in the market. The revised policy provided market traders with choices 
and had been approved by the Town Council’s insurer as appropriate in terms of 
risk management. 

After lengthy discussion the Sub Committee voted to adopt the Adverse 
Weather Policy with one wording amendment from Yellow Weather Warning to 
Amber Weather Warning, with one objection from Councillor Harvey and an 
abstention from Councillor Snelling.

RESOLVED –

(a) To recommend to Policy and Finance Committee to adopt the 
Adverse Weather Policy with amended wording from Yellow 
Weather warning to Amber Weather warning attached at Appendix 
A

(b) To recommend to Policy and Finance Committee to endorse the 
Disclaimer as attached at Appendix B.

  (c)       To endorse the recommended policy changes as set out.

15/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE 

The Sub-Committee received an update report on market activity including 
information on delivery against market plan targets, trader recruitment and 
promotion, environmental ambitions for the market, on-going highway 
maintenance and marketing of the market. 

The Sub Committee agreed the Environmental Ambitions adopted by Council on 
24 June 2019 were positive in raising awareness and encouraged the use of 
appropriate materials within the market with traders and members of the public. 

The Sub Committee wanted to recognise the award given during 2019 
International Love Your Local Market campaign where Leighton Buzzard was 
awarded the 2019 Facebook Champion in England.   The National Association 
of British Markets Authorities (NABMA) said ‘Leighton Buzzard Market shared 
engaging posts about their market traders, visitors and events throughout 

Page 8



Market Sub-Committee 29 AUGUST 2019  
                                                                                                                                                               

Page 6

LYLM2019.  The content shared on their page showcased the beauty of 
Leighton Buzzard Market in its entirety’. 
A question was raised regarding the expectation for growth since the relaunch 
and what the long-term vision for the market would be.  
After discussion Councillor Harvey wanted it noted she was unhappy with the 
way the meeting had been conducted and progressed.

RESOLVED to note the report.

16/MK    BUDGET REPORT

The Sub-Committee received a budget report for April to June 2019.

RESOLVED to note the report with one abstention from Councillor V 
Harvey.

The meeting closed at 11:36 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 AUGUST 2019.

Chair 21 NOVEMBER 2019 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



1

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

APPENDIX A

Leighton Buzzard Market Adverse Weather Policy

Introduction 

The Town Council’s intention is to preserve the opportunity for market traders to trade. 
For circumstances outside of the Town Council’s control, there may be times when 
alternative trading arrangements are necessary in order to allow trading activity to take 
place albeit on a reduced scale. At such times, traders will be required to comply 
with the Town Council’s instructions. A failure to do so will mean that a trader 
is wilfully acting outside of the scope of this policy and is doing entirely at their 
own risk. 

The Town Council will maintain its right to close or cancel the market at short notice 
and at its absolute discretion if it is considered necessary on the grounds of public 
safety. This includes “acts of God”, terrorism, flood, unexpected highway maintenance 
and weather conditions considered too severe to safely trade. 

Adverse Weather Conditions 

The Town Council monitors all weather conditions on a market-by-market basis 
including adverse and severe warnings for rainfall, snow, ice and high winds. The 
decision to operate alternative trading arrangements, cancel or close the market, will 
be taken when the predicted or actual weather conditions are considered to present 
too high a risk of harm to the public, trader and council staff (stall erectors) or 
damage to equipment or surrounding properties.

The Town Council monitors the Met Office’s colour coded weather warnings as well 
as the Beaufort Scale for marine forecast (an empirical measure for describing wind 
intensity) to understand the impact of wind speeds, (see figs.1 & 2 below). 

In making the decision to operate alternative trading arrangements, cancel or close 
the market, the Town Council’s approach is to:

• Ensure the safety of the public, traders and council staff

• Ensure that decisions for the market are managed in a fair and consistent 
manner

• Undertake the management of the market with due diligence upkeeping the 
Town Council’s responsibilities and liabilities working reasonably within 
legislative and insurer’s advisory parameters 

The Town Council’s Approach 

Page 11



2

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

The presumption remains that wherever 
possible, the Town Council wishes to preserve the opportunity for market traders to 
trade. 

Operational decisions on whether or how to operate the market will be at the discretion 
of the Market Manager or their representative based on Met Office forecasts and 
Beaufort Scale guidance. 

Severe weather conditions

Should the weather conditions deteriorate to the point where the Town Council 
believes it is no longer safe to carry on trading, all traders will cease to trade 
immediately upon notice from the Town Council with no exceptions. This will usually 
apply where a red weather warning has been issued. This is known as the Severe 
Weather Policy.

Amber weather warning

Should an amber weather warning for high winds or severe gusts be forecast for the 
day of trading for example, the following provisions will be applied; 

• No gazebos/town council owned structures will be erected.

• Traders will have the choice as to whether they decide to attend or not. Should 
traders decide not to attend, they will not be charged for missing a market 
trading day.

• For those traders that do attend, they will have the choice as to whether they 
trade from a vehicle or tabletop as both methods of trading are considered of a 
lesser risk when compared to trading from beneath a temporary structure such 
as a gazebo or similar.

• Under these conditions, the Market Manager or their representative, will at their 
discretion introduce a revised market layout based on which traders may wish 
to attend.

• The market may not be serviced in the usual way albeit contingency 
arrangements may be put in place that may require the traders to either take 
their rubbish away or dispose of it in the market bins which may be in an 
alternative secure position.

•  The decision to provide Town Council owned tables will be at the discretion of 
the market manager and will be subject to the weather conditions of the day. 

This is known as the Inclement Policy. Where possible, market traders will be issued 
with at least 48 hours’ notice of the Inclement Policy being applied before the market 
is due to take place. 

What happens should a trader decide to ignore the Severe Weather Policy or the 
Inclement Policy and continue to erect their own structure?

Page 12



3

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

The Town Council had made its position 
clear on this matter. Should traders decide to disregard the Severe Weather Policy or 
the Inclement Policy, this will be entirely at their own risk. By doing so, they are acting 
outside of the Adverse Weather Policy and will not be recognised as market traders 
on those days. The insurance industry recommends that the market trader has at least 
£15 million pounds of cover. A failure to have the appropriate level of insurance cover 
will again be at the trader’s own risk. Traders must satisfy both themselves and their 
insurance provider that their decision to ignore the Adverse Weather Policy will not 
compromise any insurance cover they believe they have in place. 

All traders will be presented with a disclaimer which they are expected to sign. A failure 
to sign the disclaimer (See Appendix B) does not however mean that the trader is 
exempt from the Adverse Weather Policy. This policy is binding on all who trade on 
the market. 

Payment Schedule 

On such occasions that the Town Council decides to apply the Adverse Weather 
Policy, the trading fees for that day will be reduced to 40% of normal market rent. 
Those who disregard Severe Weather Policy or Inclement Policy are not recognised 
and will therefore not be charged a fee.

Pictorial Beaufort Scale (Fig.1)

(Fig. 2)

Page 13



4

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Page 14



The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

                                                 

Appendix B

Leighton Linslade Town Council (“The Town Council”)

Market Trader Disclaimer and Indemnity 

1. Background

The Town Council implemented an Adverse Weather Policy which came into force on [insert 
date].

The Town Council may be required to apply the Inclement Policy or Severe Weather Policy 
as defined in the Adverse Weather Policy.

This Disclaimer applies to circumstances where the Town Council has applied the Inclement 
Policy or Severe Weather Policy and in contravention of the Inclement Policy or Severe 
Weather Policy, you have erected your own stall and traded, without the Town Council’s 
permission. 

2. Disclaimer for personal injury or death

In the absence of any negligence or other breach of duty by the Town Council, erecting your 
own stall and trading whilst the Inclement Policy or Severe Weather Policy has been applied 
is entirely at your risk. This means you would be liable for (but not limited to) all unknown, 
unforeseen, unanticipated and unsuspected injuries, damage, death, loss and liability and the 
consequences thereof. 

3. Disclaimer for loss or damage to property 

In the absence of any negligence or other breach of duty by the Town Council, The Town 
Council is not responsible for any damage, destruction or loss of your property or belongings 
where you have erected your own stall and are trading whilst the Inclement Policy or Severe 
Weather Policy has been applied.  

4. Insurance

You acknowledge that you must check the terms of your insurance policy to check whether 
erecting your own stall and trading whilst the Inclement Policy or Severe Weather Policy has 
been applied invalidates your insurance. 

5. Indemnity

I indemnify the Town Council from any and all claims, actions, procedures, costs, expenses, 
damages and liabilities, including legal fees, brought as a result of me trading where the 
Inclement Policy has been applied.  I agree that this document may be pleaded as a bar to 
any action, claim or proceedings taken at any time against the Town Council by me. 

IT IS IMPORTANT THAT YOU READ AND UNDERSTAND THIS DISCLAIMER AND 
INDEMNITY BEFORE SIGNING. IF THERE IS ANY TERM YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND, 
THEN PLEASE DISCUSS IT WITH THE TOWN COUNCIL BEFORE SIGNING.

Page 15



The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Signed ……………………………………………………

Printed Name ……………………………………………

Date ……………………………………….

IN THE EVENT THAT THIS DISCLAIMER AND INDEMNITY IS NOT SIGNED, THE TERMS 
WILL NEVERTHELESS APPLY IN FULL.

Page 16



Cultural and Economic Services Committee

Date: 7 October 2019

Title: Community Events update report

Purpose of the Report: To provide a progress report on community 
events

Contact Officer: Ben Bodsworth, Town & Community 
Promotions Manager 

Corporate 
Objective/s

LLTC Three Year Plan – 
Aim: 2 - To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership working 
and initiatives including management of the street market, support for local 
businesses, town and community promotions and town centre 
enhancements. 

Implications
Financial √ Big Lunch Event incurred a slight overspend. 

Canal Festival expenditure is within budget (with additional expenditure 
previously agreed), however, the income target hasn’t been achieved. 
Music in the Park is on budget (with additional expenditure previously 
agreed)
Living History remains on budget and is due to incur a small underspend. 
Christmas Festival weekend expenditure remains on budget.

Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health &Safety

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

1.1 To note the report.

1.2 To continue to deliver the later finishing time for the Linslade Canal 
Festival for a further two years using earmarked reserves (9057/970) as 
per Committee endorsement Ref. 140/CE.

1.3 To continue to deliver the Last Night of The Proms for a further two years
using earmarked reserves (9057/970) as per Committee endorsement 
Ref.140/CE.

1.4     To continue to hold earmarked reserves (9057/970) for three years to fund
     a Live TV Screening event when a significant national event occurs as

          per Committee endorsement Ref. 140/CE.

1.5 To endorse the event dates for the 2020 Events programme. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 
2. BIG LUNCH FOOD FESTIVAL
2.1 The Big Lunch food festival took place on Sunday 2nd June to coincide 

with the national Big Lunch initiative, organised by the Eden project. 

2.2 46 food and food-related stall holders registered to attend on the day 
along with cooking demonstrations, walkabout entertainers and 
children’s activities throughout the day. All entertainment and activities 
provided throughout the day by Leighton-Linslade Town Council are 
free for members of the public.

2.3 Have-a-go workshops were commissioned to be provided by a local children’s 
cookery school where participants were able to make fruit kebabs for 
consumption on site. 

2.4 Printed material advertising (newspapers, posters, flyers) was reduced for the 
2019 advertising campaign due to costs and limited outlets for display. A well-
structured social media campaign across Facebook (Town Council’s main page 
& Big Lunch specific event page) and Twitter aided by photographs from 
previous events was a primary source of advertising. A reach of 44,000 people 
was generated by the event on Facebook. 

2.5 Budget (101/4552) –The budget for the Big Lunch Food Festival in the financial 
year 2018/19 is £10,000. A further £3,000 is allocated from 101/4553 for 
salaries. Income for the event is generated by the sale of pitches (circa. £3,000) 
which is also spent on the event to enhance the activities on the day. A total of 
£12,967.55 was spent on the event, covered by an income of £2,950 through 
the sale of trade pitches at the event. 

2.6 Stewarding for the event was undertaken by a mix of internal and external 
staffing to ensure the safety and security of members of the public attending 
the event. 

2.7 The Mayor was joined on stage by the new Town Crier for his inaugural outing 
as part of the opening ceremony. 

2.8 Feedback following the event (both from members of the public and internal 
members of staff) has been largely positive with some suggestions for 
improvements and additions which could be made for future years. 

3 LINSLADE CANAL FESTIVAL 

3.1 Linslade Canal Festival took place on Saturday 27th July with 118 
stall holders, 17 demonstrators and 35 boats booked in to attend. 

3.2 Similar to Big Lunch, the advertising campaign for Canal Festival 
consisted a mix of digital and printed materials, utilising the same 
outlets for printed copy (Primary Times, Leighton Buzzard Observer & Bee 
Local) plus an additional specialist Canal newspaper (The Tillergraph). A reach 
of 79,000 people was generated by the Canal Festival event on Facebook. 

Page 18



 
3.3 A number of stall holders and boaters chose not to attend on the day of the 

festival due to predicted weather conditions – the lead up to the festival had 
been dry and hot, with the forecast for the day to be showers throughout the 
day and into the evening. 

3.4 For the most part, the weather held off and those stall holders who attended 
have provided feedback to say that despite the weather, their takings for the 
day were either good, or satisfactory given the weather conditions. 

3.5 A mixed team of internal and external stewards provided support to the festival, 
with good collaborative working throughout the day and into the evening. 
Members of staff commented that the internal / external mix worked well across 
all areas of the site. 

3.6 Car Parking takings were down significantly on previous years due to the 
weather, with £2,034.20 taken in 2019 against £3,407 in 2018 which will have 
a significant impact on the overall income for the event. 

3.7 The Paddocks area featured a mix of live music, demonstrations, food and trade 
stalls with a significant number remaining open until 8pm this year for the first 
time. 

3.8 The Lakeside and Poplars areas of the site incorporated demonstrations of 
yesteryear alongside registered charity stalls (in keeping with the event) with 
some food vendors and a smaller bar being present in the Poplars area. 

3.9 The annual fun dog show returned in partnership with HULA Animal Rescue 
and Pet Stop who sponsored the prizes for each category. 

3.10 The evening entertainment was well received by those who stayed with 
feedback stating people enjoyed “The live music and bar. There was a good 
atmosphere” with others saying it was “a great event, well done!”. 

3.11 Attendance figures for the evening were; 287 at 1745hrs, 203 at 1830hrs and 
96 at 18:54hrs and 28 at 1945hrs. Considering the weather conditions 
experienced during the late afternoon and into the evening, the turn out shows 
the later opening of the festival is popular. Many people commented at the 
information tent that it was great to see the event running later into the evening, 
but it was a shame about the weather. 

3.12 This pilot year for the late evening opening was a success. Committee had 
endorsed a three-year period of funding for event delivery enhancements. The 
first year was to be the pilot year which would then release the remaining two 
years of finding. Officers recommend that the enhanced event continues for the 
remaining two years utilising earmarked reserves as previously endorsed. (Ref. 
140/CE). 

3.13 Budget (101/4515) –The budget for the Canal Festival in the financial year 
2018/19 is £18,000 of which £17,200 is committed. A further £5,000 is allocated 
from 101/4553 for salaries, of which £5,200 has been spent. An additional 

Page 19



 
£2,775 from earmarked reserves (970/9507) used to support the additional 
evening activity as approved at 15th October 2018 Cultural and Economic 
Committee meeting of which £2,800 has been spent. A slight underspend of 
£600 has been generated across the budget codes allocated.

 
3.14 Income for the event is generated by the sale of pitches, bar takings split and 

car parking sales. An income target of £10,000 has been placed in the budget 
with £500 in sponsorship. £5,719.50 has been generated through the sale of 
pitches (including funfair and bar pitch), £600 through the sale of Narrowboat 
moorings and £2,034.20 in car parking income. The total income at the time of 
writing this report is set at, of £8,353.70. 

We are still awaiting details of the financial split with the Bar provider and also 
the pony rides provider. Currently we are £1,646.30 down against our income 
target which can mainly be attributed to a quieter car park due to the weather 
conditions experienced on the day. 

4 MUSIC IN THE PARK

4.1 The Music in the Park series of concerts began on Sunday 2nd June and lasts 
until Sunday 8th September.  There is an additional “Last Night of The Proms” 
screening on Saturday 14th September (15 concerts in 
total). 

4.2 The concerts begin at 3pm and last approximately 
90minutes with a 15minute interval. 

4.3 The café in the park will be providing refreshments for the Band Concerts, along 
with the toilets within the park being open throughout the concerts. This 
replaces the provision offered within the day-centre adjacent to the park.

4.4 Feedback to this provision has been mixed. However, the Café in the Park has 
adapted its offering to ensure customers are able to make purchases close to 
the Band Stand and continues to inform people of its community lead status. 

4.5 The Last Night of the Proms screening began at 6.30pm featuring a live band 
and singers until the finale of the Last Night of the Proms from the Royal Albert 
hall. 

4.6 Over 500 people stayed for the entire evening to enjoy the music and 
entertainment, with feedback on the event being excellent – ranging from a 
simple thank you to ”by far the best Leighton—Linslade Town Council event I’ve 
ever been to”. 

4.7 Budget (101/4513) – There is an expenditure of £4,820 for the band 
performances, with an expenditure of £1,140 to support the additional live 
screening. An overspend of £105 within the budget can be attributed to the 
programmes which were printed for the concerts along with some additional 
publicity materials earlier in the year. 

Page 20



 
4.8 Additional expenditure of £2,760 from earmarked reserves (970/9507) was 

agreed to be used as approved at 15th October 2018 Cultural and Economic 
Committee meeting to support the development of the evening event.  

4.9 As per previous years, during the course of this year’s concerts, visitors have 
been asked to complete a short evaluation form, with feedback monitored 
throughout the summer.

5 LIVING HISTORY EVENT PREPARATION 

5.1 Living History Day will take place on Saturday 5th October in the High Street 
alongside the market as per previous years. 

5.2 Working with Historical Promotions, officers are working on a 
programme of activities themed around the Victorian Era. 
Activities will include Queen Victoria & her private secretary, 
a roast chestnut seller and a Victorian cavalryman 
accompanied by their horse. In addition to this, Victorian 
characters portraying crafts and life from the Victorian era will be present. 

5.3 The Living History Trail will launch as part of Living History Day and will feature 
live characters from the trail in their respective locations around the town centre. 

5.4 Advertising for Living History day is due to begin at the beginning of September 
and will feature a mix of digital and printed advertising. 

5.5 Budget (101/4516) - The budget for this year’s event is £10,000 with an 
additional £1000 for stewarding (101/4003). It is expected that circa £9,000 will 
be spent on the event. 

6 CHRISTMAS FESTIVAL WEEKEND 

6.1 Officers are beginning more detailed plans in conjunction with 
LB First for the 3-day festival which will take place on 29th 
November - 1st December. 

6.2 The festival will feature the switching on of the Christmas Lights alongside a 
funfair, food court and stalls on Friday evening between 4pm and 8pm, with the 
switching on of the lights and a firework display at 7pm. A local headline band 
– Funk Odyssey have been booked for the Friday evening following the 
fireworks. 

6.3 The Charter Market will be embellished on Saturday with live entertainment 
throughout the day. It is anticipated that the Kids Out Santa Dash will take place 
on the Saturday morning from Church Square. Our event facilitates the Santa 
Dash by allowing them to utilise our road closure. Granny Tourismo have been 
booked as additional entertainment for the Saturday with further enhancements 
to follow. 

6.4 On Sunday, a Christmas market alongside street theatre, live music and have-

Page 21



 
a-go activities will fill the high-street between 11am and 3pm to conclude the 
event. 

7 Event Dates 2020

7.1 Officers are beginning to plan for the 2020 events programme and seek 
Committee’s confirmation of the following dates; 

 Big Lunch:  Sunday 7th June 
 Canal Festival:  Saturday 25th July 
 Living History:  Saturday 3rd October
 Christmas Festival:  Friday 27th – Sunday 29th November 
 Band Concerts:  Sunday 7th June – Sunday 6th September 

 (No concert on Sunday 30th August) 
 Last Night of the Proms:  Saturday 12th September 

8 Live TV Screenings

8.1 Committee has previously endorsed (Ref. 140/CE) the delivery of Live TV 
Screening events utilising earmarked reserves (9057/970). No specific national 
event or high-profile TV programme suitable for screening occurred this year, 
therefore the committed budget as not been allocated from earmarked 
reserves. Officers recommend that Committee continue to set aside the budget 
for such occasions for the Council to be in a position to respond, e.g. 2020 
European Football final.

9 Health & Safety Review

9.1 An ongoing review of Health & Safety at our community events continues and 
is providing constructive feedback for officers and mangers throughout the 
planning and delivery processes. Living History Day and Christmas Festival are 
undergoing review currently and feedback on both events will be gained 
following the delivery phase. 

10 Conclusion
The continued and additional investments in the Leighton-Linslade events 
programme are proving to be popular with members of the public and have 
been well received so far. There continues to be improvements made to our 
events programme through on-going learning and development following each 
event undertaken.

END

Page 22



Cultural & Economic Services Committee

Date:  7 October 2019

Title:  Update on TACTIC activities
                                                                  
Purpose of the Report: To update members of work at TACTIC in 

May, June, July and August 2019

Contact Officer: Tracey Quinn (now Linda Farmer), 
TACTIC Centre Manager

Corporate Objective/s VIBRANCY AND VITALITY OF TOWN AND TOWN CENTRE 
To consider ways to support the increase in leisure and 
personal development opportunities for youth.

Implications:
Financial √ Spend of earmarked reserves recommended
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery

√ General Update

Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To note the report

1.2     To request- £1123 (50% of total cost) from ‘TACTIC’ (970 9020) earmarked
           reserves to replace worn carpets within building.

1.3     To request £978 from ‘Donations’ (970-9049) earmarked reserves to allow
      for the development of the Satellite Basketball project.

2.       YOUTH WORK: MAY 2019 TO AUGUST 2019

 TACTIC organised two music workshops for young people to give them an 
opportunity to creatively express their feelings about issues affecting them 
through writing lyrics.

 During May half term five of the ex-youth forum members went on a group visit 
to the Escape Room as a thank you for their years of volunteering and 
engagement on the forum – and they escaped!

 The TANG group has seen a variety of activities over the months with a visit to 
Billing Aquadrome at the end of term. Two youth volunteers continue to support 
this satellite provision for young people with disabilities.

 Awareness information themes on knife crime, language & lyrics, sexual health, 
risky behaviour and festival season and how to stay safe have taken place.

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



 
 TACTIC had a Vandyke student join us for their work experience and she liked 

it so much she has continued to volunteer weekly at the TANG group.
 Playscheme week for 8-11yr olds was held at Mentmore Pavilion at the start of 

the summer project and 65 children attended over the four days. Fun was had 
by all with varied activities from team games, arts &crafts, sports and good use 
of the parks children’s play area as a break out space.

 The summer programme over August has seen a quiet but steady attendance 
in our positive activities for 12 – 19 yrs. New younger people aged 12-13yrs 
have been attending the arts sessions, Food Hygiene training has taken place 
with young people achieving an accreditation qualification, the weekly games 
in the park have been weather permitting and two took place, the day trip out to 
Great Yarmouth seaside was a fun day with new young people joining in and 
three weekly drop ins have continued throughout the holidays.

 Friday Family Fun afternoons at the Parson’s Close Recreation Ground have 
worked well with team games, circus skills and Zumba for all members of the 
community. This has been an interesting way to get TACTIC out & about and 
promote our services.

 TACTIC is involved in organising a Youth Work Awards event in November as 
part of national youth work week. This will be run jointly with the youth workers 
forum from across Bedfordshire and we will be nominating young people from 
Leighton Buzzard for their achievements. 

3. Satellite Sports

3.1 Following on from our taster sports session held at Pages Park that took place   
at the beginning of the year, it was decided to organise and deliver basketball 
sessions as part of our second satellite project. This was a success, seeing 
over 60 young people take part. The young people came from all over Leighton 
Buzzard and were aged between 12-16yrs. They made new friends, learnt new 
skills and worked well as a team. The project will continue with basketball 
sessions, offering another six weeks starting 11th September – 16th October 
2019.

Due to uptake and feedback from young people and parents, it is hoped to 
continue the session at an indoor venue (Brooklands School) for the winter 
months.

4 Staffing Update

4.1 TACTIC has successfully recruited a local person to the part-time youth support 
worker vacancy to work two of the drop-in sessions.  The new post holder 
started in September.

4.2 The Centre Manager left the council at the end of September. An internal 
candidate was successfully recruited to the post commencing work on 1st 
October. This has left a vacant position for a senior youth worker and 
recruitment is underway. 

Page 24



 

5 Youth Crime Project

5.1      TACTIC has been successful in obtaining £5,000 funding to deliver part of the 
CBC Supporting Families against Youth Crime Project. This will involve a series 
of workshops in Leighton Buzzard Schools i.e. two upper and two middle 
schools and at TACTIC. Groups of young people will be identified at risk of 
crime and take part in the workshops to try and intervene in their behaviour and 
understanding of risks and discuss the consequences of their actions. Focus of 
the workshops will depend on the current identified issues affecting those at 
risk e.g. knife crime, ASBO, theft and drug involvement. Delivery of the project 
locally will take place November 2019 – July 2020.

   
6 Nationwide ‘NEET’ Project

TACTIC has been approached to work in partnership with the local Nationwide 
Building Society as part of their community involvement work. TACTIC has 
planned to run a four week job club targeting NEET (Not in Education, 
Employment or Training) young people aged 16 – 21yrs. These weekly 
sessions with nationwide staff supporting and utilising their skills will look at CV 
writing, job search, interview skills and a motivational boost. The project will be 
initially piloted from 25th September to 16th October 2019. Due to the loss of our 
previous work club partner this will be a new approach but still offers support 
for those young people who need encouragement to become active.

7.  Attendance Statistics

Under 16 16 & Over Male Female Total YP May to 
Aug

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2017 2018 2019

May to Aug 2017 - 2019

May to Aug 17-19 2017 2018 2019

Under 16 1012 659 1678

16 & Over 936 330 335

Male 916 331 888

Female 1032 658 1125

Total YP May to Aug 1948 989 2013

Page 25



 
Overall general attendance at the centre has increased compared with the 
same period over the last two years. This is due to the newer younger age 
range of young people we are encouraging to attend i.e. under 16yrs and more 
schools work and assemblies that have taken place to promote the centre. 

There have been 45 appointments held with specialist agencies:

4YP Talkspace Totals
May 9 9 18
Jun 4 10 14
Jul 6 4 10
Aug 3 0 3
Totals 22 23 45

8. Individual one to one support with a TACTIC Youth Worker during May 2019 – 
August 2019 saw 48 undertaken, either via mentoring support or drop-in. The 
order of most presenting issues were: Sexual Health, Mental Health, 
Relationships and Family. Incoming referrals over this period has seen a total 
of 22 YP.  

9. Future Project Work over the coming months include:

 Basketball satellite sport project at Pages Park
 Youth Work Week Awards
 Youth Crime Project
 Nationwide ‘NEET’ project
 Creative Art workshops
 Annual Christmas Lunch for ‘older’ residents

END

Page 26



 

Page 1 of 2

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
CULTURAL & ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE  WORK PLAN 2019-2020 

Incorporating Cultural & Economic Services Strategic Objectives for 2019-2024 (from Town Council Three Year Plan)

VIBRANCY AND VITALITY OF TOWN AND TOWN CENTRE Comments

To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership working and initiatives including management of the 
street market, support for local businesses, town and community promotions and town centre enhancements.

This work will be primarily within the remit of the Cultural & Economic Services Committee.

17 To consider delivery of a Town Ranger service.

18 To promote the creation of a soft play facility within the town.

19 To identify, promote and celebrate the unique features and heritage of the Parish to both residents and visitors.
a) Living History Trail launch 5 Oct 2019.  

b) Town Centre Architectural Lighting Scheme. 
Complete
Underway

20 To consider taking on additional services, where practicable and where considered beneficial to the town.

21 To promote the town centre as a safe and vibrant place to visit in the evening.
a) Street Food Heroes – 1600-2100, attending 5 times during summer months.

b) Host of Best Bar None Coordinator. 2019 Award scheme and awards evening delivered.   
Underway
Complete / Ongoing

22 Consider the provision of town centre Wi-Fi (including footfall monitoring facility).
a) At implementation stage and will include footfall counting. 3yr contract in place funded through s106. Underway

23 To continue to manage, promote and develop the street market.
Ongoing

24 To continue to deliver quality community events and regularly review their scope and delivery.
a) Pilot year for enhancements of Band Concerts and Canal Festival. Live TV Screening also an option. 

b) Event Health and safety receiving a detailed review during 2029.
Ongoing
Underway

25 To consider ways to work with town centre businesses to achieve digital/ on-line commerce options and promote the 
town’s shopping/ leisure offer.

26 To consider ways to support the increase in leisure and personal development opportunities for youth.
a) Pilot Youth Film Club, July – October 2019 with Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre.

b) TACTIC survey underway closing 31 Oct 2019.
Underway
Underway

27 To consider ways to support the increase in leisure opportunities for older people.

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 9



 

Page 2 of 2

WORK PLAN 2019-2020

Meeting Date Regular Updates Work Plan 2019-2020

11 March 2019
TACTIC
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Youth Promise Grant 
Events
Best Bar None

Town Centre Wi-Fi – verbal update
Town Centre Pigeon Management – verbal update

 
03 June 2019

TACTIC
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Events
Best Bar None

Youth Promise Grant Evaluation – deferred to 02/09/19
Heritage Trail Update 
Business Networking Event, post event report
Town Centre Wi-Fi

02 September 2019
07 October 2019

TACTIC
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Events
Best Bar None

Youth Promise Grant Evaluation 
Pigeon Management  deferred to March 2020
Project updates – Architectural Lighting, History Trail, WiFi, Best Bar None, - verbal updates 
Movies for the More Mature
V.E. Day 2020 – presentation from Leighton Linslade Rotary Club 
Greensand Ridge Walk town centre feature – presentation from Greensand Trust

09 December 2019
TACTIC
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Events
Best Bar None

Youth Film Club post pilot project report

09 March 2020
TACTIC
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Events
Best Bar None

Pigeon Management  

P
age 28



Cultural and Economic Services Committee     

Date: 7 October 2019

Title:  Budget update

Purpose of the Report: To monitor Committee budgets

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Economic 
Development

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2. 
Implications:
Financial √ 2019/20 budget update and spend.
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

Should members be minded the recommendations are to:

1.1 Note the report.

1.2 To allocate up to £250 from the signage earmarked reserves (970/9028) 
for a brown tourist sign denoting St Mary’s Church, as per para. 2.2.

1.3 To allocate up to £7,000 from earmarked reserves (970/9026) to the VE Day 
celebrations 2020, led by Rotary Leighton Linslade to secure historical 
entertainments and appropriately mark the historic day as per para 2.3.

1.4 To allocate £900 from earmarked reserves (970/9026) to fund an increase 
in movie showings by three films, associated with the existing Movies for 
the More Mature scheme,  as per para 2.4.

1.5 To agree to review the annual budget for the Movies for the More Mature 
scheme following the pilot in readiness for financial year 2020/21, from 
£4,500 to £5,400.  

1.6 To allocate £2,400 from earmarked reserves (970/9026) to extend the pilot 
scheme to enable a longer period of recruitment and assessment. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



 
2. BUDGET INFORMATION

2.1 Current year budget - Appendix A (attached) is the budget account sheet for    
the 2019/20 financial year providing spend information to date. 

2.2 The Council has been approached by Father Bernard of St Mary’s Church 
requesting funding support for a brown sign to point in the direction and note 
the 11th Centre Church dedicated to St. Mary. The cost of the sign/s is modest, 
estimated at a maximum cost of £250 (sign and installation). Should Committee 
agree to the expenditure, officers will liaise with the Church and Central 
Bedfordshire Highways to confirm location. 

2.1 VE Day 75th celebrations take place over the weekend, 8th to 10th May 2020. It 
was announced that the May Day Bank Holiday, for one year only, would be 
moved to the following Friday 8th May in acknowledgement of the important 
historic day. The resulting impact of the change is that the annual May Day 
celebrations led by Rotary Club Leighton Linslade, has needed to be re-thought. 
Rotary has approached the Council informing it of their plans to host an event 
on Saturday 9th May in Parson’s Close Recreation Ground. The event will be 
scaled back from normal and will be sympathetic to the occasion.
 

2.2 The above change has a real impact on Rotary’s ability to raise income to 
deliver the event that the community has come to expect. Considering the 
importance of this national anniversary weekend, Rotary has invited the Council 
to enter into a collaborative approach in delivering the event. Rotary will 
continue to host the event and requests that the Council contribute £7,000 
towards entertainment that is in-keeping. Included in the budget will be an 
activity that recognises residents who are 75 years of age and above, giving 
them a mock ration book, which provides them free tea and cake. The latter 
being a reminder of how life was like when they were growing up in the war 
period.  Rotary’s briefing letter is attached at Appendix B (to follow).

2.3 Committee continues to fund the very successful Movies for the More Mature 
scheme which offers concessionary film tickets for residents of 55 years and 
over. The scheme works in collaboration with Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre 
(Central Bedfordshire Council). Officers have received the request from the 
Library Theatre to expand the scheme on to officer films during the daytime 
during the winter season. 

2.4      Council currently funds up to 15 films annually. The proposal is to increase this
to 18 films per year, showing the additional films during the winter months to 
give attendees the chance to see more films during the day once the night 
draws in earlier. The annual budget currently supporting the scheme is set at 
£4,500 for 15 films. The proposal would be to increase this by £900. Officers 
recommend that Committee utilise earmarked reserves, 970/9026, to fund this 
increase as a pilot for this winter season. Following an assessment of the pilot, 
Committee may wish to consider increasing the annual budget, to £5,400 
commencing in financial year 2020/2021. 

Page 30



 
2.5 The Youth Film Club pilot scheme concludes on 31 October 2029, having 

delivered two films per month between July and October. Learning has taken 
place regarding how the scheme is delivered, what it is called and how it is 
promoted. The scheme needs a longer test period to assess whether there is 
indeed enough interest in the scheme from young people to warrant its 
continuation. Unfortunately, on launching the scheme, a period of establishing 
how it was run proved detrimental to the promotion of the scheme. Rather than 
conclude it unsuccessful at this stage, officers recommend extending the pilot 
for a further 8 film showings at a cost of £2,400 utilising earmarked reserves, 
970/9026. 

3. EARMARKED RESERVES

3.1 The table below gives detail regarding Committee’s current Earmarked
reserves. The table provides Committee with a ‘running total’ showing what   
spend Committee has agreed. The Council’s financial system only shows 
‘committed’ spend so if a project is yet to be undertaken, the allocated budget 
will not show on the financial system. Thus, the table offers a more detailed 
picture of earmarked reserves and their intended allocation/use. 

Page 31



 
EMR (970)  Information / rationale Remaining
(9018)
Economic 
Development
£25,978 + £249
= £26,227

Ref. 12/CE (f) 
remaining funds 
of £249 from 
9027, (Town 
Centre 
Management), 
moved into 
9018

To fund ongoing Town Centre focused activity, e.g. street 
furniture maintenance/updating, reprinting of shopping 
directories, Town maps, town banners, etc. Town centre 
attractions, e.g. Children’s Trail repairs.

 Children’s Trail allocation of £2,600. Work will be 
delivered in 2019. Order to be raised.

 Committed for 2019/20 Market promotion / social 
Media and market footfall counts.

 Contribution to Best Bar None 2019/20 scheme

Less

£2,600

£4,000
£1,000

=£18,627
Remaining 
to allocate

(9020) TACTIC
£17,001 

To fund ongoing activity delivery, equipment refreshes, 
building upkeep and maintenance.

Indication of spend/allocation in 2019/20:
 £6,000 CHUMS service after 31/03/2019 until 

April 2020 (ref: Agenda item 11/03/19)
 £2,100  install fire doors and safety updates, 

(Ref. 12/CE (c)
 £1,656 update 3x computers for young people’s 

use, (Ref. 12/CE (d))

As per TACTIC Update report recommendation, 
the spend of  £1123 (50% of total cost) to replace 
worn carpets within building.

Less

£6,000

£2,100

£1,656

£1,123

=£6,122
Remaining 
to allocate 

(9049) 
Donations to 
TACTIC
£1,238

Gifted from the public to be used to support the work of 
TACTIC – activities for young people - and Youth Forum raised 
funds for specific causes. 

 £114 of raised by Youth Forum for Homeless 
cause too be given to charity. (Ref: 12/CE)

As per TACTIC Update report recommendation,  
the allocation of £978 to allow for the 
development of the Satellite Basketball project.

Less

£114

£978

=£146
Remaining 
to allocate

(9022)
Community 

Un-used budget is rolled forward to facilitate maintenance, 
electricity supply and kit re-stock costs. To cover the remaining 
life span of the equipment; 7 years remaining. 

Less

Page 32



 
Access 
Defibrillators
£3,042

 Installation of new cabinet (Post Office).
 Replacement batteries and new defibrillator.  

£705
£1,940
=£397
Remaining 

(9026)
Cultural & 
Economic 
Services
£39,700

To support the achievement of Council 5-Year Plan Objectives 
– e.g. pilot projects before long-term commitments are made or 
ruled out. 

 Funding partnership with Leighton Library 
Cinema to pilot a Youth Film Club between July  
and September as per Council objectives. (Ref. 
164/CE). (post script: the period was extended to 
end in October 2029)

Recommendation 1.3, to allocate up to £7,000 from 
earmarked reserves (970/9026) to the VE Day 
celebrations 2020, for Rotary Leighton Linslade to 
secure historical entertainments and appropriately 
mark the historic day as per para 2.3.

Recommendation 1.4, to allocate £900 from 
earmarked reserves (970/9026) to fund an increase 
in movie showings by three films, associated with 
the existing Movies for the More Mature scheme,  as 
per para 2.4.

Recommendation 1.5, to extend the pilot scheme for 
the Youth Film Club and allocate £2,400 (8x films) , 
as per para 2.5.

Less

£2,400

£7,000

£900

£2,400

=£27,000
Remaining
to allocate

(9027)
Town Centre 
Management 
£804.12

Accrued from previous years, work now picked up through 
general Economic Development earmarked reserves (9018)

 Town lamp post banners repairs/change over.

Ref. 12/CE (f) remaining funds of £249 moved into 
9018, (Economic Development).

Less

£555

=£0

(9028)
Signage – 
proposed 
allocation of 
£3,829

Committee endorsed to continue improving town centre 
signage. Peacock Mews and Friday Street/ Ropa Court 
signage completed.

 Focus spend on Ryland Mews and Bell Alley in 
2019/20, Ref. 12/CE (b)

Less

£TBC 

Page 33



 

END

Recommendation 1.2: Request for a brown sign 
denoting St Mary’s Church.  Estimate costs (sign 
and installation), up to £500 £500

=£3,329 
Remaining 
to allocate

(9055)
Public 
Conveniences
£16,204

To fund ongoing upkeep and maintenance. Less
=£16,204
Remaining 
to allocate

(9044)
Christmas 
lights
£1,075

3-year contract in place 2019 to 2021 – to manage contract 
period and cover repair callouts, damage, improve 
infrastructure, and pay for Christmas tree, etc.

Less
=£1,075
Remaining 
to allocate

(9057)
Community 
Projects
23,615

Committee endorsed it's use to expand community events 
programme over 3 years.

 Remaining budget allocated to enhance the 
events programme with additional time and 
expenditure at Canal Festival, Band Concerts & 
Live TV Screening in financial years 2019/20, 
2020/21 & 2021/2022. (Ref. 140/CE). (To review 
these changes after the first year before 
continuing for the remaining two years.) 1yr = 
£7,500 / 3yrs £22,500

Less

£22,500
=£1,115.
Remaining
to allocate

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	5 SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
	Leighton Buzzard Market Adverse Weather Policy Appx A
	Disclaimer   Appx B

	7 COMMUNITY EVENTS
	8 TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE
	9 COMMITTEE WORKPLAN AND OBJECTIVES
	10 BUDGET REPORT
	Budget Monitoring Report


